
MAYOR 
CHRISTIE RAINWATER 

MAYOR PRO TEM 
MICHAEL SALLY 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
COURTNEY SOLER 

CITY COUNCIL    
       KEN BOGGS 

JEFF C. CHANDLER 
MIKE DYSON 

KEVIN HEDGPETH 
ADAM SPURLOCK 

AGENDA 

HANAHAN PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

Tuesday, October 3, 2023 

6:00 P.M. 

1. Call to Order by Chairperson Pat Eckstine

2. Determination of a quorum.

3. Pledge of allegiance to the Flag.

4. Read and approve the meeting minutes from September 5, 2023.

5. Old Business:
A. Planning Commission’s Rules of Procedure-Review and adoption of new Rules

of Procedure

6. New Business:
None

7. Citizen Comments.

8. Next Meeting: Tuesday, November 7, 2023

9. Adjourn.

1



HANAHAN PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING 
September 5, 2023, 6:00 P.M.  

NOTE: During periods of discussion and/or presentations, minutes are condensed and paraphrased. 
Digital coverage of the meeting is available upon a Freedom of Information Request. 

The meeting of the Hanahan Planning Commission was held in the Debbie Lewis Municipal Chambers at 
1255 Yeamans Hall Rd on September 5, 2023. Chairman Eckstine presided over the meeting. 
Commissioners Carolyn Lackey, Butch Thrower, Chris Brace, Matthew Weatherford, and Brian Hamiliton 
were in attendance. Commissioner Phillip Strope was absent. A quorum was present. This meeting 
agenda was posted on the bulletin board at City Hall. Staff members in attendance were Lee Lawson 
(City Planner) and Larry Sturdivant (Building Official). Visitors present were Courtney Soler (City 
Administrator), Cam Spencer (Asst. to City Administrator), and Councilman Mike Dyson.  

1. CALL TO ORDER:
Chairman Eckstine called the meeting to Order at 6:01pm. 

2. DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM:
Chairman Eckstine made the determination that a quorum was present. 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG:
The pledge was recited. 

4. Approval of Minutes, August 1, 2023
Chairman Eckstine asked for a motion to approve the minutes. Commissioner Lackey made a motion to 
approve the Minutes of August 1, 2023. Commissioner Hamilton seconded the motion. Motion passed 
after a Roll Call Vote.  

5. OLD BUSINESS:
There was none. 

6. NEW BUSINESS:
A. Dycon-Robinson St/ Dickson Ave Minor Land Development Final Plat- A plat to create two

residential lots from a 0.227-acre parcel at 5800 Robinson Street (TMS 265- 15-04-001).
Applicant: Mr. Mike Dyson, PD Homes, LLC.

Lee Lawson presented to the Commission. He stated that the parcel was located within the
Town Center District which allowed single-family dwellings. The proposal was to split the parcel
into two separate lots. The existing house would remain on one lot, while the newly created lot
would have a single-family dwelling built. Lee stated that staff gave the application a favorable
recommendation as it was consistent with the rules of the zoning and land development
ordinances, and it complied with the policies and guidelines of the comprehensive plan.

Chairman Eckstine asked if the applicant wished to speak. Councilman Dyson. Councilman Dyson
stated that he felt this proposal would benefit the area. He also said that there would be future
development by him in nearby parcels.

DRAFT

2



Chairman Eckstine asked what the minimum lot size was. Lee stated it was 900 square feet. He 
said that Lot 23 would be 6,042 and Lot 23A would be 3,842 square feet. 
 
Chairman Eckstine asked if there was amotion to approve or disapprove. Commissioner 
Weatherford made a motion to approve. Commissioner Lackey seconded the motion. A roll call 
vote was taken. Motion passed unanimously. 
 

B. Planning Commission’s Rules of Procedure-Review and adoption of new Rules of Procedure 
Chairman Eckstine stated that she had a few items of notation to add and verify to the proposed 
rules and procedures. She mentioned those to Lee. Chairman Eckstine also asked for Lee to send 
the proposed rules and procedures to the Municipal Association for review. Commissioner 
Hamilton mentioned a few comments for correction. 
 
Chairman Eckstine asked for a motion to postpone the vote to the October meeting to allow for 
the MASC review. Commissioner Thrower made a motion. Commissioner Brace seconded the 
motion. A roll call vote was taken. Motion passed unanimously. 

 
7. CITIZEN COMMENTS: 

There was none. 
 

8. NEXT MEETING: TUESDAY, October 3, 2023 
The next Planning Commission meeting would be held on October 3, 2023, at 6pm.  
 

9. ADJOURNMENT:  
Chairman Eckstine asked for a motion to adjourn. Commissioner Hamilton made a motion to adjourn. 
Commissioner Brace seconded the motion. A roll call vote was taken. Motion passed unanimously. The 
meeting was adjourned at 6:26pm.  
 
 ATTEST: 
__________________________________   _______________________________  
Chairman Eckstine  Larry Sturdivant, Secretary 

DRAFT

3



  
 

 

MAYOR 
CHRISTIE RAINWATER 

MAYOR PRO TEM 
MICHAEL SALLY 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
COURTNEY SOLER 

         CITY COUNCIL             
            KEN BOGGS 

JEFF C. CHANDLER 
MIKE DYSON 

KEVIN HEDGPETH 
ADAM SPURLOCK 

 

  

Memorandum 

DATE:              October 3, 2023    

 
TO:              Planning Commission 
 
FROM: Lee Lawson, AICP  
                          City Planner 
 
RE: Draft Rules of Procedure Revisions 
 
 
 
 

The following are the revisions to the first draft. Other minor changes were made to correct 
grammatical errors. 

 
1) Section I.2.B.5- The original #5 was removed on the recommendation of MASC.  I.2.B.5 “A 

Commission member, upon recognition by the Chair, shall have the floor until he/she relinquishes 
it.”  
 

2) Section I.2.B was renumbered due to the removal of #5  
  

3) Section I.3.C.4- Was changed to add the corresponding section of the Zoning Ordinance and 
specific state code that addresses posting properties that are part of a rezoning request.  
 

4) Section II.2- Public Notice of Meetings was added due to questioning from the commission on 
whether the notices were following the S.C. Freedom of Information Act (SC Code of Laws 
Section 30-4-080(A)). The section outlines the procedure required by SC Code of Laws Section 
30-4-.  
 

5) Chapter II had to be renumbered due to the addition of the Public Notice of Meetings section. 
 

 
6) Section II.3.C-Agenda amendment requirements added per request of the Planning Commission. 

The requirements are based on the SC Code of Laws Section 30-4-080(A)-FOIA Act. 
 

7) Section III.2-A specific date needs to be part of a motion to postpone an agenda item, so the date 
of the next called meeting is the default date.  (A recommendation by MASC.) 

 
8) Section III.5- The Planning Commission agreed that noon on the day before the meeting is the 

cut-off for correspondence to the commission on an agenda item.  
 

 
 

4



9) Section III.9.A.5-Added references to the sections from the Zoning and Land Development 
Ordinances that address reapplying after a denial.  

 

10) Section III.10-Clarification that voting will be done by roll call. (A recommendation by MASC.) 
 

11) Section III.10.B- The revision will clarify the process for vesting by references to the Land 
Development Ordinance and SC Code of Laws Title 6, Chapter 29, Article 11. 

 
 

 

Attachments: 
1. Revised Rules of Procedure-2nd Draft 

 

  

5



DRAFT 2

CITY OF HANAHAN, SOUTH CAROLINA 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

RULES OF PROCEDURE  

I. Organization
1. Rules

These rules of procedure, also known as bylaws, are adopted pursuant to the S.C. Code of
Laws, Title 6, Chapter 29, Section 320 for the Hanahan Planning Commission.

2. Membership
Members shall be appointed by the City Council and shall serve without compensation.
Members are expected to serve for the entire term of appointment and attend scheduled
meetings. Members should notify the Chairman and Secretary in advance if they expect to 
be tardy or absent. Attendance of each meeting shall be recorded and maintained in 
accordance with Section IV(1)(B) of this document. 

A. Education Requirements
Each appointed Commission Member must comply with the educational
requirements as outlined in the S.C. Code of Laws, Title 6, Chapter 29, Article 9, and
annually report proof of satisfaction to the Clerk of Council.

B. Conduct of Members
1) It is the responsibility of a Commission member to render a fair and impartial

judgment and remain objective. All reasonable efforts shall be made to avoid
individual communications with applicants or those with a vested interest.

2) A Commission member shall avoid the appearance of influence from applicants
or those with a vested interest in a request before the Commission.

3) A Commission member should help to maintain the dignity and integrity of the
meeting and all who participate.

4) Abuse of any meeting participant of any kind will not be tolerated and could be
grounds for dismissal by the City Council.

5) Each Commission member who wishes to speak will be afforded the utmost
opportunity.

6) No Commission member shall interrupt while another speaks except where
otherwise provided in the rules.

7) No Commission member should speak twice in a matter until all members have
been afforded the opportunity to speak once.

8) Individual Commission members may express their views or request
information without limitation on any subject provided that no member of the
Commission shall speak for the Commission except as may be directed by the
Commission. In all circumstances, members should exercise care to ensure that
their statements and opinions are understood to be solely those of the
members. 

9) All electronic devices shall be silenced or turned off during the meeting. By all
present at the meeting, including the Commission Member. Prior to the start of
the meeting, the Chair shall remind all those in attendance of this requirement.

6

https://www.scstatehouse.gov/code/t06c029.php
https://www.scstatehouse.gov/code/t06c029.php
https://www.scstatehouse.gov/code/t06c029.php
https://www.scstatehouse.gov/code/t06c029.php


DRAFT 2

 

 
10) The Commission members shall refrain from initiating, commenting, or 

responding on social media on any matter before the Commission as such 
communication creates an appearance of an inability to render an impartial 
and objective decision on an agenda item. 

 
C. Conflict of Interest 

Members shall abide by the provisions outlined in the S.C. Code of Laws, Title 8, 
Chapter 13, Section 700(B)(1) and (5) pertaining to conflict of interest. Recusals are 
permissible pursuant to these provisions. 

 
D. Ex parte communication 

As applicable, each appointed official must comply with the requirements regarding 
ex parte communication as outlined in S.C. Code of Laws, Title 1, Chapter 23, Article 
3. The provisions of this section shall apply from the date the matter is pending 
before the Commission commences to and including the effective date of the final 
decision. 

 
3. Officers 

The officers of the Commission shall be a chairman and vice-chairman elected for one-year 
terms at the first regularly scheduled meeting of the Commission in each calendar year. 
A City staff member shall serve as secretary of the Board. 

 
A. Chairman 

The Chairman shall be a voting member and shall: 
1) Call special meetings; 
2) Preside at meetings and public hearings; 
3) Swear in witnesses when applicable; 
4) Act as spokesperson for the Commission; and 
5) Perform other duties approved by the Commission. 
6) Shall not give a motion on business agenda items in order to preserve the 

impartiality required of the presiding officer of the Planning Commission. 
 

B. Vice-chairman 
The Vice-chairman shall exercise the duties of the chairman in the absence, disability, 
or disqualification of the chairman. In the absence of the chairman and vice-
chairman, an acting chairman shall be elected by the members present. 
For training purposes, the Vice-Chairman shall be required to chair (1) one meeting 
per year 
 

C. Secretary 
The Secretary, when applicable, shall: 

1) Keep the minutes of all meetings of the Commission. 
2) Give or serve all notices required by law or by these rules and regulations. 
3) Prepare the agenda for all meetings of the Commission. 
4) See that the property involved is properly posted in compliance with Zoning 

Ordinance Section 2.4 (E)(3) and S.C. Code of Laws, Title 30, Chapter 4, 
Section 80(A) requirements. 
 7

https://www.scstatehouse.gov/code/t08c013.php
https://www.scstatehouse.gov/code/t08c013.php
https://www.scstatehouse.gov/code/t01c023.php


DRAFT 2

 

 
5) Be custodian of Commission records. 
6) Inform the Commission of correspondence relating to the business of the 

Commission and to attend to such correspondence. 
7) Perform other duties normally carried out by a secretary. 

 
II. Meeting Procedures 

1. Time and Place 
Regular meetings of the Planning Commission will normally be held the first Tuesday 
night of each month at 6:00 P.M. At such meetings, the Commission shall consider all 
matters properly brought before the Commission. A regular meeting may be canceled or 
rescheduled by the Commission at a prior meeting. 
Special meetings may be called by the Chairman upon at least 24-hour notice and must 
be posted for the public in accordance with the S.C. Freedom of Information Act. 
 

2. Public Notice of Meetings 
A. Written public notice must be given for regular meetings at the beginning of each 

calendar year. The notice must include the dates, times, and places of such 
meetings. (S.C. Code of Laws, Title 30, Chapter 4, Section 80(A)) 

B. An agenda for regularly scheduled, rescheduled, or special meetings must be 
posted on a bulletin board in a publicly accessible place at city hall and on the City 
of Hanahan’s website at least twenty-four hours prior to such meetings. The public 
notice must include the agenda, date, time, and meeting place.  (S.C. Code of Laws, 
Title 6, Chapter 29, Section 760(A)) 

 
3. Agenda 

A. Order of Agenda 
An agenda shall be furnished by the Secretary and posted in accordance with the S.C. 
Code of Laws, Title 30, Chapter 4, Section 80(A). As applicable, agenda items will be 
listed as outlined in section II.3 of these rules of procedure in the following order: 
1) Call to Order 
2) Determination of a quorum 
3) Pledge allegiance to the Flag 
4) Approval of Minutes 
5) Old Business 
6) Business (in accordance with section II.2.B below) 
7) Public Comment 
8) Date of the next meeting 
9) Adjournment 

 
B. Order of New Business 

New business items shall be placed after the administrative items (section II.2.A, 1-
4) in the order as numbered and according to the date and time received: 
1) Items required by ordinance or rules typically include applications from the 

public requiring action of the body. 
2) Matters submitted by Council or departmental staff for the body’s 

consideration. 
 
 8

https://www.scstatehouse.gov/code/t30c004.php
https://www.scstatehouse.gov/code/t30c004.php


DRAFT 2

 

 
3) Matters proposed by a member of the body with at least one additional 

sponsoring board member initiated at least one meeting in advance of 
consideration and having received an affirmative vote for inclusion by the body. 

4) Items deferred by the Commission that are not finalized after a period of six 
months shall be deemed terminated and become null and void. 

5) Applications and other Items may be removed from the agenda at a meeting 
by a majority vote. 

 
C. Amending the Agenda 

1) An item that requires no vote may be added to the agenda by a two-thirds vote 
of the members present and voting. 

2) An item that does not require a final vote with public comments may be added 
to the agenda with a two-thirds vote of the members present and voting. 

3) An item that does not require a final vote with no public comments may be 
added to the agenda with a two-thirds vote of the members present and voting 
upon a finding by the Planning Commission that an emergency or an exigent 
circumstance exists if the item is not added to the agenda. 

4) An item with a final vote may be added to the agenda with a two-thirds vote of 
the members present and voting upon a finding by the Planning Commission 
that an emergency or an exigent circumstance exists if the item is not added to 
the agenda. 

(S.C. Code of Laws, Title 30, Chapter 4, Section 80(A)) 
 

4. Applications 
A. Requests to be heard before the Commission shall be made by submitting the 

appropriate application form(s) approved by the Department of Planning, Land Use, 
and Neighborhoods in accordance with the submittal deadline published on the 
annual schedule of meetings. The application may be filed by the property owner or 
their designee. 

B. All meetings required prior to submission, whether with the Commission or staff, 
must be held prior to an application being filed. Failure to meet preliminary meeting 
requirements may be grounds for rejection of an application. 

C. Applications may require a submittal and review fee in an amount specified by the 
schedule of fees established by the City. 

D. Failure to submit required information or forms and applicable fees may be grounds 
for rejection of the application. 

E. Requests not permitted or prohibited according to the Hanahan Code of 
Ordinances shall be rejected unless relief has been sought from the appropriate 
governing body or appellate body. 

F. Any changes, alterations, or additions to plans after final disposition of the request 
shall require a new application and applicable fee. 

 
5. Quorum 

A majority of the members of the Commission shall constitute a quorum. A quorum shall 
be present before any business is conducted other than rescheduling a meeting. Those 
recusing themselves for a conflict of interest pursuant to S.C. Code of Laws, Title 8, 
Chapter 13, section 700(B)(1) and (5), remaining present, shall be counted as present for 
the purposes of establishing a quorum. 
 9

https://www.scstatehouse.gov/code/t08c013.php
https://www.scstatehouse.gov/code/t08c013.php


DRAFT 2

 

 
 

6. Rules of Order 
Robert’s Rules of Order shall govern the conduct of meetings except as otherwise provided 
by these Rules of Procedure. 

 
III. Hearing Procedures 

1. Conduct of Hearing 
In matters brought before the Commission, the following process and time limits will be 
followed: 

Public Hearings Time Limit 
A. Chair or designee opens the hearing (reads title) N/A 
B. Staff presentation N/A 
C. Applicant presentation 10 minutes 
D. Public comments 3 minutes 
E. Board/Commission Questions N/A 
F. Applicant and staff response (rebuttal) 5 minutes 
G. Chair or designee closes the public hearing N/A 
H. Board/Commission comments and deliberation N/A 
I. Board/Commission Disposition of Request (motion and vote) N/A 

 

The times set above may be changed on majority acceptance of a motion to suspend the 
rules with a new time set. 

 
2. Appearance 

The property owner or any party in interest may appear in person or by an agent or 
attorney. In the absence of an applicant, the Commission may decide by a majority vote 
to either postpone the matter until the next called meeting or proceed with hearing the 
matter. 

 
3. Evidence 

Relevant documents, photographs, maps, plans, drawings, etc., will be received in the 
record without authentication in the form of legible copies. Relevant testimony which is 
not cumulative or hearsay will be received. The Chair or designee will rule on all 
evidentiary matters. Evidence may be placed in the record with an objection noted. 

 
4. Witnesses 

Testimony by each witness may be presented under oath, as applicable or necessary. The 
oath shall be administered by the Chair or the Chair’s designee. 

 
5. Public comment 

Public comments at Planning Commission meetings are governed by the provisions in 
these rules of procedure.  

• Any person shall address the commission only during the designated time period. 
Three minutes will be allowed for each speaker. 

• The Chairman may elect to allow those public comments related to published 
agenda items to speak prior to those making general comments on non-agenda 
items.  

 10



DRAFT 2

 

 
• Public comment is not a question-and-answer period or dialogue between the 

Commission or the public at any point during the meeting. Except for public 
hearings, no person shall speak at a meeting unless invited to do so by the 
Commission.  

• The Chair or designee will recognize and accept testimony and public comment 
from all who wish to be heard.  

• No person speaking on an agenda item shall be subject to cross-examination. All 
inquiries or questions from the public during the meeting shall be posed to the 
Commission and not the applicant or other member of the public.  

• Commission members shall refrain from making comments and/or asking 
questions during the applicant presentation or public comment.  

• Irrelevant testimony or public comments will not be accepted, nor will the 
reading of repetitious letters or petitions be permitted by the public.  

• Documents received during the meeting may be filed with the Secretary so that 
the record will show the names of the persons supporting or opposing an 
application. Upon the conclusion of the presentations and public comment, each 
Commission member will have an opportunity to ask questions.  

• Upon the close of the public hearing or public comments, no further testimony or 
comments will be heard from the public. 

• The Commission will then make final comments and deliberation of the request 
prior to a motion being made. Errors of fact may be corrected at any time after 
the close of the public hearing or public comments. 

 
6. Correspondence 

Written correspondence related to agenda items shall be submitted to the City by noon 
one business day prior to the meeting to be reviewed by the Commission. 
Correspondence received after that date will not be forwarded to the Commission. 

 
7. Cross-Examination 

No party shall have the right to cross-examine; however, the opportunity to question 
speakers with opposing viewpoints may be freely extended to the Commission when 
conducted in an orderly manner. Intimidation of speakers will not be allowed. 

 
8. Electronic Devices 

All electronic devices shall be silenced, turned off, or left outside the meeting room or 
building during the meeting. 
 

9. Disposition/Action of the Commission 
A. Disposition 

The Commission may deliberate and either 1) approve, 2) approve with conditions, 
3) defer, or 4) deny a matter by a majority vote of members present at the hearing 
and qualified to vote, provided that not less than a quorum is present. Deliberations 
shall be conducted in public, and voting shall be in public for the record. All 
decisions by the Commission shall include findings of fact pursuant to S.C. Code of 
Laws, Title 1, Chapter 23, section 350. 

 
 
 
 11

https://www.scstatehouse.gov/code/t01c023.php
https://www.scstatehouse.gov/code/t01c023.php
https://www.scstatehouse.gov/code/t01c023.php


DRAFT 2

 

 

1) Approve 
The Commission may approve a matter as submitted. 

 
2) Approval with conditions 

The Commission may approve a matter with conditions. The conditions should 
be clearly and distinctly enumerated and, when applicable, must include a 
timeframe for compliance. 

 
3) Deferral Request by the Applicant 

Parties filing appeals or applications may, after the application has been 
advertised as part of a meeting's agenda, request that the application be 
deferred. A request for deferral must be made in writing, signed (or sent via 
electronic mail) by the applicant or agent, and must specify an extraordinary 
and compelling reason for the deferral. The Commission must vote to approve 
or deny the request for deferral. Without an extraordinary and compelling 
reason, only one deferral shall be permitted. The deferred item shall be placed 
on the agenda of the next regular meeting. An item may only be deferred one 
time. 
Matters deferred that are not finalized after a period of six months shall be 
deemed terminated and become null and void. Resubmittal of terminated 
requests shall be processed as a new application with all prescribed fees and 
other requirements. 

 
4) Deferral by the Commission 

An application may be deferred by the Commission upon its own motion. 
Deferred requests are not considered approved, and the request must be 
resubmitted to the Commission for review. A member may vote on a matter 
that the member was not present for when the matter was initially heard. The 
deferred item shall be placed on the agenda of the next regular meeting. An 
item may only be deferred one time.  
The Commission may defer the final disposition of a matter to a 
subcommittee of the Commission or to staff by a majority vote of the 
members present at the hearing and qualified to vote. Matters deferred to a 
subcommittee or staff that are not finalized after a period of six months shall 
be deferred back to the Commission and placed on the next meeting’s 
agenda. 

 
5) Denial 

Matters before the Commission for final disposition that are denied shall not 
be resubmitted for a period of twelve months, regardless of change(s) in 
ownership per Zoning Ordinance Section 2.9.1 and Land Development 
Ordinance Section 1.6(C). Any person aggrieved from the actions of the City 
Planner or other administrative official may appeal to the appropriate 
appellate body pursuant to S.C. Code of Laws, Title 6, Chapter 29. 

 
 
 
 12

https://www.scstatehouse.gov/code/t06c029.php


DRAFT 2

 

6) Continuance by the Applicant 
Parties filing applications may, upon a showing of good cause, request that 
the application be continued for a specified amount of time. A request for a 
continuance must be made in writing, signed (or sent via electronic mail) by the 
applicant or agent, and must specify a reason for the continuance. Upon its 
own motion, the Commission may either approve the request for a 
continuance or proceed to hear the request. Without an extraordinary and 
compelling reason, only one such continuance shall be permitted. If a decision 
has not been rendered within the specified timeframe, the original request will 
be placed on the next meeting agenda to be heard, and the applicant will be 
notified of the date and time of the hearing. 

 
7) Withdrawal 

A request may be withdrawn by the applicant or designee upon written notice 
(or sent via electronic mail) delivered to the Secretary prior to action by the 
Commission. Applications withdrawn by the applicant shall be considered a 
termination of the application. Resubmissions shall be processed as a new 
application with all prescribed fees and other submittal requirements met. 

 
10. Voting 

All eligible Commission members present are expected to vote. A Commission member 
absent at a previous review of a request is eligible to vote on subsequent review of the 
same request. Voting shall be done by Roll call. Voting shall be by voice, except where 
specifically outlined in the Hanahan Code of Ordinances. An abstention from a vote or 
failure of a member to vote shall be considered a nonvote. Recusals are only allowed 
permitted in accordance with S.C. Code Ann. § 8-13-700.  
Any member recusing themselves from voting on a matter shall prepare a written 
statement describing the matter requiring action or decisions and the nature of his 
potential conflict of interest with respect to the action or decision. Commission members 
not present may not vote. 
Applications containing multiple requests may be addressed by separate votes of the 
Commission. 

 
A. Tie votes 

In the event of a tie vote on any given motion, the Commission shall endeavor to 
either approve or disapprove an applicant’s request through subsequent motions 
and votes. If, after at least one additional attempt, the board remains deadlocked 
as determined by the Chair or designee, no further motions are necessary, no final 
decision has been made, and the matter is unresolved.  
The applicant may then return at a subsequent meeting for further consideration of 
the relief requested. Since no final decision has been rendered, a return will not be 
considered a rehearing; rather, it will be considered a new hearing. All Commission 
members, including those that had not participated in the original hearing, may 
participate in the new hearing. Those that previously participated must do so with 
an open mind to the new proceedings. Any member prejudiced otherwise shall 
state so on the record and must not participate. 
 
 

 13



DRAFT 2

 

B. Vested Rights 
A request approved by the Commission may be vested in accordance with the 
Hanahan Land Development Ordinance Section 1.11 (Vested Rights to Develop 
Property) and   S.C. Code of Laws, Title 6, Chapter 29, Article 11.  

 

11. Appeal of Commission Decision 
A. Appeal of a Commission Decision 

Any person aggrieved by a decision of the Commission may appeal to the appropriate 
appellate body. The appeal must be filed in a timely manner as outlined by the S.C. 
Code of Laws, Title 6, Chapter 29, Article 11. 

 

IV. Records 
1. Minutes 

The Secretary shall record all meetings and hearings of the Commission. The Secretary 
shall prepare the minutes of each meeting for approval of the Commission. Minutes shall 
include, at a minimum, the following information: 

A. Title and date of the meeting 
B. Commission members present and absent 
C. Staff members in attendance 
D. Time meeting was called to order 
E. Any action taken by the Commission and final disposition of agenda items 
F. Time meeting adjourned 

 
Recordings and minutes shall be preserved and maintained as public records according to 
the S.C. Code of Laws, Title 30, Chapter 1. 

 
2. Orders and Documents 

Where applicable, the Secretary shall prepare and serve all orders of the Commission. 
Copies of all notices, correspondence, documentary evidence, orders, reports, and forms 
shall be maintained as public records in accordance with the S.C. Code of Laws, Title 30, 
Chapter 1. 

 
A. Form and Service of Order 

The Secretary shall assist in the preparation and service of all orders of the 
Commission in the appropriate form to each party of interest as outlined in the S.C. 
Code of Laws Title 6, Chapter 29, Section 1150(B). 

 
B. Reports 

The Secretary shall assist in the preparation and forwarding of all reports in the 
appropriate form to the Commission members. 

 
V. Adoption and Amendments to Rules of Procedure 

1. Adoption 
The Commission shall approve the adoption of the Rules of Procedure by a majority vote 
of the members on an annual basis. The Secretary shall note the date of adoption on the 
Rules of Procedure as follows: These rules were adopted by a majority vote of the 
members of the Commission at the meeting held on October 3, 2023. 

 
 14

https://www.scstatehouse.gov/code/t06c029.php
https://www.scstatehouse.gov/code/t06c029.php
https://www.scstatehouse.gov/code/t06c029.php
https://www.scstatehouse.gov/code/t06c029.php
https://www.scstatehouse.gov/code/t30c001.php
https://www.scstatehouse.gov/code/t30c001.php
https://www.scstatehouse.gov/code/t30c001.php
https://www.scstatehouse.gov/code/t06c029.php
https://www.scstatehouse.gov/code/t06c029.php


DRAFT 2

 

 

2. Amendments 
These rules may be amended at any regular Commission meeting by a majority vote of 
the members at least seven days after the written amendment is delivered to all members 
and upon appropriate notice to the public. 

15


	Revised PC Rules of Procedures-2nd Draft.pdf
	2. Membership
	A. Education Requirements
	B. Conduct of Members
	C. Conflict of Interest
	D. Ex parte communication
	3. Officers
	A. Chairman
	B. Vice-chairman
	C. Secretary
	II. Meeting Procedures
	3. Agenda
	B. Order of New Business
	4. Applications
	5. Quorum
	6. Rules of Order
	III. Hearing Procedures
	2. Appearance
	3. Evidence
	4. Witnesses
	5. Public comment
	6. Correspondence
	7. Cross-Examination
	8. Electronic Devices
	9. Disposition/Action of the Commission
	1) Approve
	2) Approval with conditions
	3) Deferral Request by the Applicant
	4) Deferral by the Commission
	5) Denial
	6) Continuance by the Applicant
	7) Withdrawal
	10. Voting
	A. Tie votes
	B. Vested Rights
	11. Appeal of Commission Decision
	IV. Records
	2. Orders and Documents
	A. Form and Service of Order
	B. Reports
	V. Adoption and Amendments to Rules of Procedure
	2. Amendments

	Revised Rules of Procedures--Version 2.pdf
	2. Membership
	A. Education Requirements
	B. Conduct of Members
	C. Conflict of Interest
	D. Ex parte communication
	3. Officers
	A. Chairman
	B. Vice-chairman
	C. Secretary
	II. Meeting Procedures
	3. Agenda
	B. Order of New Business
	4. Applications
	5. Quorum
	6. Rules of Order
	III. Hearing Procedures
	2. Appearance
	3. Evidence
	4. Witnesses
	5. Public comment
	6. Correspondence
	7. Cross-Examination
	8. Electronic Devices
	9. Disposition/Action of the Commission
	1) Approve
	2) Approval with conditions
	3) Deferral Request by the Applicant
	4) Deferral by the Commission
	5) Denial
	6) Continuance by the Applicant
	7) Withdrawal
	10. Voting
	A. Tie votes
	B. Vested Rights
	11. Appeal of Commission Decision
	IV. Records
	2. Orders and Documents
	A. Form and Service of Order
	B. Reports
	V. Adoption and Amendments to Rules of Procedure
	2. Amendments

	ADP956D.tmp
	Attachments:




